
October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 1 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF FERNDALE – HUMBOLDT COUNTY CALIFORNIA – U.S.A. 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Location: City Hall 
834 Main Street 
Ferndale CA 95536 

Date: October 4, 2012 

 Time: 7 pm 

 Posted: 9/27/12  

 
We welcome you to the meeting. Members of the Public may be heard on any business item on this 

Agenda before or during the City Council consideration of the item. The public may also directly address the City 
Council on any item of interest to the public that is not on the Agenda during the public comment time; however, 
the City Council generally cannot take action on an item not on the agenda. 

A person addressing the City Council will be limited to five (5) minutes unless the Mayor of the City 
Council grants a longer period of time. While not required, we would appreciate it if you would identify yourself 
with your name and address when addressing the Council. 

This City endeavors to be ADA compliant. Should you require assistance with written information or 
access to the facility, or a hearing amplification, please call 786-4224 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

TO SPEAK ON ANY ISSUE, BE ACKNOWLEDGED BY THE MAYOR BEFORE PROCEEDING TO THE PODIUM, 
STATE YOUR NAME AND ADDRESS FOR THE RECORD (optional), AND DIRECT YOUR COMMENTS ONLY TO THE 
COUNCIL. 

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – Mayor 
2. PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 
3. ROLL CALL –City Clerk 
4. CEREMONIAL:  

a. Oath of Office for Councilman Michael Sweeney ...........................................  Page 3 
b. Proclamation for Guy Fiery ............................................................................  Page 4 

5. MODIFICATIONS TO THE AGENDA 
6. STUDY SESSIONS   ......................................................................................................  None 
7. PUBLIC COMMENT. (This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on 

any matter not on this agenda and over which the Council has jurisdiction. Items 
requiring Council action not listed on this agenda will be placed on the next 
regular agenda for consideration, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rds of 
the Council that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an 
urgent nature requiring immediate action. This portion of the meeting will be 
approximately 30 minutes total for all speakers, with each speaker given no 
more than five minutes.) ............................................................................................  Page 5 

8. CONSENT CALENDAR. (All matters listed under this category are considered to 
be routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion. Unless a 
specific request is made by a Councilmember, staff or the public, the Consent 
Calendar will not be read. There will be no separate discussion of these items. 
However, if discussion is required, that item will be removed from the Consent 
Calendar and considered separately under “Call Items.”) 

a. Acceptance of Accounts Payable ...................................................................  Page 6 
b. Approval of previous minutes: September 6, 2012 ........................................  Page 20 

9. CALL ITEM 
10. PRESENTATION / Community Forum 

a. Airport Information - Don Ehnebuske, Ken Mierzwa ......................................  Page 22 
  



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 2 

 

11. BUSINESS 
a. Resolution 2012-26 Accepting a one year extension to the MOU with Eel 

River Disposal concerning Green Waste Curbside Collection Program  ...........  Page 23 
b. Resolution Number 2012-28 Approving the Execution of Supplemental 

Agreement No. 005-N to Administering Agency-State Agreement No. 
01-5097R to allocate $18,000 of Federal Funds to the PA&ED and PS&E 
phases of the Pedestrian Improvement Project - Phase 2. .............................  Page 26 

c. Resolution 2012-30 Authorizing the City Manager to execute an 
agreement for improvements at the intersection of Washington St. and 
Schley Ave. and authorize the submittal of the Notice of CEQA 
Exemption. ....................................................................................................  Page 28 

d. Resolution 2012-31 Authorizing the City Manager to move forward with 
the final design, bid process and construction, as well as execute a 
construction contract for the drainage Improvements for the 
intersection of 4th St and Shaw Ave; authorize the submittal of the 
Notice of CEQA Exemption. ...........................................................................  Page 30 

e. Resolution 2012-29 Giving authorization to move forward with the final 
design, bid process and construction for the drainage Improvements on 
5th St near the Ferndale housing complex and authorize the submittal of 
the Notice of CEQA Exemption. In addition, authorize the City Manager 
to execute a construction contract dependent upon environmental 
review clearance. ..........................................................................................  Page 33 

f. Change in Police Department budget ............................................................  Page 36 
12. CORRESPONDENCE  ...................................................................................................  Page 38 
13. REPORTS 

a. City Manager Staff Report and Community Events.........................................  Page 45 
b. Commissions / Committees and others 

i. Design Review...................................................................................  Page 57 
ii. Drainage Committee .........................................................................  Page 59 

iii. Planning Commission ........................................................................  Page 60 
iv. Sign Committee ................................................................................  Page 561 

c. Council Reports and Comment 
i. HCAOG  Minutes  ..............................................................................  None 
ii. HMRA Minutes .................................................................................  None 

iii. HWMA Abstract  ...............................................................................  Page 66 
iv. RCEA Minutes  ..................................................................................  Page 76 
v. RREDC Minutes .................................................................................  Page 78 

 
14. ADJOURN ...................................................................................................................  Page 80 

 
This notice is posted in compliance with Government Code §54954.2. 
The next Regular Meeting of the Ferndale City Council will be held on 

THURSDAY, November 1, 2012 in the Auditorium of City Hall at 7:00pm 
  



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 3 

 

 

 

Section 1 

Call Meeting to Order 
 

Section 2 
Pledge Allegiance 

 
Section 3 
Roll Call 

 
Section 4 

Ceremonial 
Oath of Office for Councilman Michael Sweeney 

Proclamation for Guy Fieri 

  



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 4 

 

                   City of Ferndale     INCORPORATED 1893 

 

 
 

A PROCLAMATION  
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE  

HONORING  
SUPER CHEF, GUY FIERI 

 
WHEREAS, Chef extraordinaire Guy Fieri began his love affair with food at the age of ten 
in Ferndale, selling soft pretzels from a three-wheeled bicycle cart he built with his dad, 
Jim, called “The Awesome Pretzel.”; and 
 
WHEREAS,  Renowned Author Guy Fieri donated a Pretzel Cart to the Ferndale Junior High 
School; and  
 
WHEREAS, Restaurateur Guy Fieri initiated a training and entrepreneurship program for 
the youth in our community; and 
 
WHEREAS, Food Network’s Host of “Diners, Drive-Ins and Dives,” Guy Fieri supports this 
community by promoting the City of Ferndale on nationwide television; and 
 
WHEREAS, Culinary Genius Guy Fieri has made generous donations to fundraisers and 
auctions of various kinds in our community; and 
 
WHEREAS, All Around Good Guy, Guy Fieri’s attitude and willingness to promote and give 
back to our community will help keep the small town authenticity of Ferndale for 
generations to come. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT PROCLAIMED that the City Council of the City of Ferndale does 
hereby commend Guy Fieri for his many years of involvement in our community and 
expresses its sincere thanks on behalf of the citizens of Ferndale. 

 
PROCLAIMED by the City Council of the City of Ferndale on October 4, 2012:  
 
 
 
 
 
    
 

_____________________________________ 
Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 5 

 

 

 

  Section 5 

Modifications to the Agenda 
 

Section 6 
Study Sessions 

 

Section 7 

Public Comment 
 

This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on any matter not on this agenda and 
over which the Council has jurisdiction. 
 
Items requiring Council action not listed on this agenda will be placed on the next regular 
agenda for consideration, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rd of the Council (three of the 
five members) that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an urgent nature 
requiring immediate action. 
 
This portion of the meeting will be approximately 30 minutes total for all speakers, with each 
speaker given no more than five minutes. Please state your name and address for the record. 
(This is optional.) 

Section 8 

Consent Agenda 
 
All matters listed under this category are considered to be routine by the City Council and will 
be enacted by one motion.  
 
Is there anyone on the Council, Staff or the public that would like to pull an item off the 
Consent Agenda for scrutiny? Those items will be considered separately under “Call Items.” 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 6 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 7 

 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 8 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 9 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 10 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 11 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 12 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 13 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 14 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 15 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 16 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 17 

 

  



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 18 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 19 

 

  



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 20 

 

City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
City Council Minutes for September 6, 2012 

 

Mayor Jeffrey Farley called the Regular City Council Meeting to order at 7:00PM. Present were 
Councilmen Ken Mierzwa, John Maxwell and Stuart Titus, along with staff City Manager Jay Parrish, City 
Clerk Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Engineers Praj White and David Caisse, and City Police Chief Bret Smith.  
Those present pledged allegiance to the flag. The City Clerk called roll call.  
 
Consent Calendar: Councilman Maxwell asked that the Accounts Payable be separated from the 
minutes. MOTION: (Mierzwa/Titus) Accept Accounts Payable. Unanimous. MOTION: (Mierzwa/Titus) 
Approve minutes from the August 2 and August 23, 2012 meetings as presented. Three ayes, and one 
abstain from Councilman John Maxwell due to absence to the meetings. 
 
Interview and selection of Council Member to fill term until November 4, 2014. Mayor Farley discussed 
the Council Vacancy Policy that was accepted in 2003. He asked one of the Candidates to leave the room 
while the other candidate answered questions. Mr. Lino Mogni left the room. Mr. Michael Sweeney 
stepped to the podium. The councilmen took turns asking the following questions: (1) What are some of 
the issues you see facing the City? Do you have a vision for the future of the City? (2) Please explain why 
your background and qualifications would make you a good choice to fill the council vacancy. (3) How do 
you see working with us as a team; what strengths do you bring to help us continue to work as a team? 
(4) The time commitment for our monthly City Council meetings is about 2 ½ hours, with packet review 
taking up to two hours. Will you be able to make this time commitment? (5) The mayor has the 
responsibility to appoint councilmembers to represent the City on various Joint Powers Authorities, 
committees and commissions which meet once a month to once a quarter. Would you be able to also 
make this time commitment? (6) Do you have any known Conflicts of Interest that would keep you from 
serving in your full capacity? Mr. Sweeney answered the questions, then left the room and Mr. Mogni 
took the podium to answer the same questions. Mr. Sweeney was called back into the room. Mayor 
Farley asked if any in the audience had questions for the candidates. Mr. Jerry Bruga asked both 
candidates to relay how long they had lived in the City and what government committees they had 
served on. Both candidates answered the question. The council then took a vote by written ballot that 
were collected by City Manager Jay Parrish and opened and read by City Clerk Nancy Kaytis-Slocum. The 
votes were: Mayor Farley for Lino Mogni; Councilmen Maxwell, Mierzwa and Titus for Michael Sweeney. 
The councilmembers thanked the candidates for stepping forward. Mayor Farley announced that 
Michael Sweeney would be sworn in before the October City Council Meeting. 
 
Cable Franchise Change: City Manager Parrish relayed that The City of Ferndale holds a franchise 
Agreement with Suddenlink Communications (Suddenlink). Suddenlink has recently informed us that the 
equity investors of its parent company, Cebridge Acquisition, have entered into a Purchase and Sale 
Agreement with Nespresso Acquisition. We have been told that there will be no change locally, and that 
our community will continue to be served by Suddenlink. While the transaction will simply substitute 
existing equity investors with the new investors, it is our responsibility to make sure the transition is 
scrutinized; review any compliance issues; and approve the change of control. To assist in the transition, 
Suddenlink has provided $5000, which, the City Manager explained, could be used to hire Access 
Humboldt and the Buske Consulting group. MOTION: (Titus/Maxwell) Approve $5000 miscellaneous 
revenue (1001411) be expended on Professional Services (10165055). All in favor. 
 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 21 

 

Green Curb in front of the Red Front Store at 577 Main Street. Chief Bret Smith noted that the request 
appears consistent with other green zone (20 minute) parking areas within the downtown business area 
(in front of the Post Office at 554 Main Street, in front of and to the side of North Valley Bank at 394 
Main, and in front of Valley Lumber at 657 Shaw), and that it will cost approximately $32. MOTION: 
(Mierzwa/Titus) Approve the painting of 42’ of green curb in front of 577 Main Street. Unanimous. 
 
Classification change to local streets and roads: City Engineer Praj White explained that by accepting this 

change and city would be eligible for additional funding from the Department of Transportation. 

MOTION: (Maxwell/Titus) Accept Resolution 2012-25 Approving the submittal of a Functional 

Classification Change for Local Streets and Roads to the State of California, Department of 

Transportation. All in favor. 

City Manager Jay Parrish presented Ordinance 2012-03 An ordinance amending Purchasing Ordinance 

07-04, Section 6.01. Councilman Maxwell pointed out an error on the first page of the ordiniance: “c. 

When the City has a contract with another governmental unit to purchase a particular time item on a 

cooperative basis;” MOTION: (Titus/Mierzwa) Approve the Second Reading of and Adopt Ordinance 

2012-03 An ordinance amending Purchasing Ordinance 07-04, Section 6.01.1(d) as corrected, by title 

only, and direct staff to notice the adoption appropriately. Unanimous. 

 

Correspondence: City Manager Parrish relayed that the city has been working with InLight Fitness for a 

Memorandum of Understanding regarding their use of the Community Center, and that we may be 

bringing something back to the council on this. 

 

Reports: The City Manager reminded all that there will be quite a few events happening this weekend: 

Bargain Lovers Weekend; Bocce Tournament; Wedding at the Community Center; Ice Cream Social at 

City Hall; the Milk Can Game at the High School and the Gem and Mineral Show at the Fairgrounds. 

Councilman Ken Mierzwa reported that the Air Quality Board has been issuing health advisories and if 

called could supply anyone with the hazard in light of the many wildfires around the state. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 8:00PM. The next regular Council Meeting is scheduled for October 4, 2012 at 

7PM. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Nancy Kaytis-Slocum 

City Clerk 

 

 

  



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 22 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Section 9 

CALL ITEMS 
 

These are items pulled from the consent agenda  
for discussion and a separate motion. 

 

Section 10 
 

PRESENTATIONS 
Don Ehnebuske and Ken Mierzwa regarding the Airport 

 

Section 11 

 

BUSINESS 

 

 

 

  



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 23 

 

Meeting Date: October 4, 2012 Agenda Item Number 11a 

Agenda Item Title: Resolution 2012-26 Accepting a one year extension to the MOU with 
Eel River Disposal concerning Green Waste Curbside Collection 
Program 

Presented By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required: Approve Resolution 2012-26 Accepting a one year extension to the 

MOU with Eel River Disposal concerning Green Waste Curbside 

Collection Program 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 2012-26 Accepting a one year extension to the MOU 

with Eel River Disposal concerning Green Waste Curbside Collection Program 

BACKGROUND 

In negotiations with ERD representative Karen Smith, it was acknowledged that the program 

was running well at this time they do not have a desire to raise rates. They do not feel they 

have enough information to determine if the rate should change therefore they have agreed 

not to raise rates for one year while they continue to compile data. Based on community 

support for this program, we believe it is worth continuing for another year. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

None 

 

  



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 24 

 

RESOLUTION 2012-26 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE 

ACCEPTS A ONE YEAR EXTENSION TO THE MOU WITH EEL RIVER DISPOSAL CONCERNING  

GREEEN WASTE CURBSIDE COLLECTION PROGRAM 

 

This is an extension for one year of the existing Memorandum of Understanding dated November 1, 

2011 between Eel River Disposal Company, Inc. (“ERD”) and the City of Ferndale (“City”). 

WHEREAS, ERD holds the exclusive franchise from the City for the collection of solid waste and the 

exclusive right to collect recyclable materials placed at curbside (the “Franchise Agreement”) and  

 

WHEREAS, the Franchise Agreement defines recyclable materials to include yard trimmings (“Green 

Waste”) and  

 

WHEREAS, ERD and the City are interested in (1) gauging and generating interest in, (2) 

understanding the extent of the expected costs and (3) judging the value of the particular approaches 

of collecting Green Waste, and  

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and ERD agree to this Memorandum of Understanding to create a trial 

program for the collection of Green Waste within the City:  

1. From as soon after such date as the City executes this Agreement that ERD can proceed to 
October 31, 2013 there will be a program for the collection and reuse of Green Waste. 

2. The program will involve the use of supplied specially designated sixty either gallon Green 
Waste toters which will be picked up every other week during the Program. ERD will establish 
rules governing the location and placement of toters for pick up and the non-contamination of 
material. The Green Waste will be transported to Scotia where it will be used to generate 
electricity or to the City of Fortuna’s corporation yard. If this use of the material becomes 
unavailable or not fully available, the Program shall be suspended until ERD and the City can 
agree on a new delivery point and any other needed changes to the terms of the Program. 

3. The participants in the Program must specially sign up for the participation in the Program. 
Participants will pay $ 3.00 per month for the service during the Program. The cost of the service 
will be added to the participant’s current garbage or recycling service bill and is available to 
private residents, multifamily housing and businesses. 

4. The City, with the advice and review of ERD will provide Program publicity in a similar manner as 
the Single Stream Recycling Collection Program under the Franchise Agreement and ERD will 
also provide Green Waste publicity to its current customers along with its billing for service. 

5. Three months before the one-year anniversary of the Program, the City and ERD will meet to 
discuss the level of customer interest, what opportunities exist to enhance customer interest, 
what the per customer cost to provide this service was, the future prospects for Green Waste 
disposal and the level of contaminated materials in the Green Waste stream, all in connection 
with mutually drafting an appropriate Franchise Agreement amendment and serving an 
appropriate rate for Green Waste collection as part of the Franchise Agreement. The Franchise 
Agreement amendment shall include a vehicle to changing rates as costs escalate or if the 
location or cost of disposal should change. 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 25 

 

6. If the Program is not sufficiently used to reasonably sustain operations, ERD and the City may 
agree to terminate the Program early upon giving subscribers thirty days’ notice. 

7. ERD shall save, keep, hold harmless, defend and indemnify the City, its officers, agents, 
employees, and volunteers from and against any and all claims, damages, costs, fees and 
liabilities, of every type and nature, which may arise out of ERD’s performance of the work 
under this Memorandum of Understanding.  

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Ferndale on the 4th Day of October, 2012 by the 

following vote: 

Ayes:    

Noes:    

Abstain:  

Absent:           

      Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 

Attest: 

 

      

Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Clerk 

  



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 26 

 

Meeting Date: October 4, 2012 Agenda Item Number 11B 

Agenda Item Title: Resolution Number 2012-28 Approving the Execution of Supplemental 

Agreement No. 005-N to Administering Agency-State Agreement No. 01-5097R 

to allocate $18,000 of Federal Funds to the PA&ED and PS&E phases of the 

Pedestrian Improvement Project - Phase 2. 

 

Presented By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required: Approve Resolution Number 2012-28 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Resolution Number 2012-28 Approving the Execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 005-N to 

Administering Agency-State Agreement No. 01-5097R to allocate $18,000 of Federal Funds to the 

PA&ED and PS&E phases of the Pedestrian Improvement Project - Phase 2. 

BACKGROUND 

The Agency-State Agreement No. 01-5097R already exists between the City and the Department of 

Transportation for $250,000 of Federal Funds with an additional $15,025 of City Funds for Pedestrian 

Improvements on Rose Ave. from McKinley Ave. to Berding St. The Supplemental agreement shifts 

$4,000 of Federal funds from the construction contingency budget to the Project Approval & 

Environmental Document (PA&ED) and the Plans, Specifications and Estimates (PS&E) phases. The 

additional $4,000 is needed to renew the NEPA exemption and to submit an application to the California 

Department of Fish & Game for the improvements required to the existing drainage ditch. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

$18,000 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 27 

 

Resolution Number 2012-28 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE 
APPROVING THE EXECUTION OF SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 005-N TO ADMINISTERING 

AGENCY-STATE AGREEMENT NO. 01-5097R TO ALLOCATE $18,000 OF FEDERAL FUNDS TO THE PA&ED 
AND PS&E PHASES OF THE PEDESTRIAN IMPROVEMENT PROJECT – PHASE 2 

 
WHEREAS, the Department of Transportation has issued a program supplement to adopt and 

incorporate the Administering Agency – State Agreement for Federal Aid, which was entered into 
between the Administering Agency and the State on 10/16/08 and is subject to all the terms and 

conditions thereof; and  

WHEREAS, The Program Supplement is executed in accordance with Article I of the aforementioned 

Master Agreement; and  

WHEREAS, the Project is a Pedestrian Walkway and the location is Rose Avenue from McKinley Avenue 

to Berding Street in the City of Ferndale with a Project Approval and Environmental Document (PA&ED) 
and Plans, Specifications and Estimate (PS&E) phases at an estimated cost of $18,000, which will be 

covered with Federal Funds (L22E) of $18,000; and 

WHEREAS, The City of Ferndale authorizes the City Manager to sign the Supplemental Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, The Program Supplement Agreement is Numbered 005.N to Administering Agency-State 
Agreement No. 01-5097R, the File is 01-HUM-0FER; RPSTPLE-5097 (008); and 

WHEREAS, the Department of Transportation requires the local agency certified authorizing resolution 
that clearly identifies the project and the official authorized to execute the agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed pedestrian improvement project is exempt from the provisions of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), pursuant to Class 1 Categorical Exemption, sections §15301 

(c & d) Existing Facilities. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of 

the City Council of the City of Ferndale, held on the 4th day of October 2012, by Council Member 
_____________, who moved its adoption, which motion was duly seconded by Council Member 

_____________, and the resolution adopted by the following vote: 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 4th day of October 2012 by the following vote:  

AYES:       
NOES:      

ABSENT:    
ABSTAIN:    

                    ____________________ 
                Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Clerk 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 28 

 

Meeting Date: October 4, 2012 Agenda Item Number 11C 

Agenda Item Title: Resolution 2012-30 Authorizing the City Manager to execute an agreement for 
improvements at the intersection of Washington St. and Schley Ave. and 
authorize the submittal of the Notice of CEQA Exemption. 

Presented By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required: Approve Resolution 2012-30 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Resolution 2012-30 Authorizing the City Manager to execute an agreement for improvements 

at the intersection of Washington St. and Schley Ave. and authorize the submittal of the Notice of CEQA 

Exemption. 

BACKGROUND 

There is a 12” steel drainage pipe that is located beneath the northern side of Washington St. beginning 

at Schley Ave. and heading towards the alley located approximately 260 LF to the northwest. The pipe is 

collapsed and can no longer function properly. In order to maintain proper drainage in the area, a new 

inlet will be installed at the intersection of Washington St. and Schley Ave. and approximately 40 LF of 

12” HDPE pipe (corrugated plastic pipe) will be installed across the roadway. The existing 12” steel pipe 

will be abandoned in place.      

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Not to Exceed $7,500 from the Drainage Fund 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 29 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-30 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE AUTHORIZES THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN 

AGREEMENT FOR IMPROVEMENTS AT THE INTERSECTION OF WASHINGTON STREET AND SCHLEY 
AVENUE AND APPROVES THE SUBMITTAL OF THE NOTICE OF CEQA EXEMPTION,  

PURSUANT TO CLASS 1 CATEGORICAL EXEMPTION 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Ferndale wishes to improve drainage throughout the city; and, 
 
WHEREAS, The City wishes to delegate authorization to execute agreements for this project and any 
amendments to the City Manager; and 
 
WHEREAS, There is a 12” steel drainage pipe that is located beneath the northern side of Washington St. 
beginning at Schley Ave. and heading towards the alley located approximately 260 LF to the northwest; 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, The pipe is collapsed and can no longer function properly. In order to maintain proper 
drainage in the area, a new inlet will be installed at the intersection of Washington St. and Schley Ave. 
and approximately 40 LF of 12” HDPE pipe (corrugated plastic pipe) will be installed across the roadway; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, The existing 12” steel pipe will be abandoned in place; and 
 
WHEREAS, Funding for this project will be drawn from the Drainage Fund and will not exceed $7500; 
and,    
 
WHEREAS, the proposed drainage improvement projects for 4th and Shaw Ave and Washington St 
Culvert repair is exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), 
pursuant to Class 1 Categorical Exemption, sections §15301 (c & d) Existing Facilities. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Ferndale authorizes the City 
Manager to execute an agreement for improvements at the intersection of Washington Street and 
Schley Avenue and approves the submittal of Notice of CEQA Exemption. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Ferndale on October 4, 2012 by the 
following vote: 
 
Ayes:   
Noes:  
Abstain:   
Absent:  
      _________________________________  
      Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
___________________________  
Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Clerk 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 30 

 

 

Meeting Date: October 4, 2012 Agenda Item Number 11D 

Agenda Item Title: Resolution 2012-31 Authorizing the City Manager to move forward with the 

final design, bid process and construction, as well as execute a construction 

contract for the drainage Improvements for the intersection of 4th St and Shaw 

Ave; authorize the submittal of the Notice of CEQA Exemption. 

Presented By: Jay Parrish, City Manager and Praj White, City Engineer 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required: Approve Resolution 2012-31 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Resolution 2012-31 Authorizing the City Manager to move forward with the final design, bid 

process and construction, as well as execute a construction contract for the drainage Improvements for 

the intersection of 4th St and Shaw Ave; authorize the submittal of the Notice of CEQA Exemption. 

BACKGROUND 

The intersection of 4th St and Shaw Ave was built so that the crowned section of 4th St is dominant 

through the intersection. Traffic along Shaw Ave has to dip down before the intersection, ramp up 

through the intersection, and dip down again before leaving. The additional traffic loads and pressures 

created by the dips have caused the concrete gutters and adjacent pavement to fail. As a result, the 

northwest corner of the intersection has become a large pothole that continues to grow every year. In 

order to correct the problem, the damaged portion of the intersection will be removed and excavated in 

order to place additional base. In addition, the concrete gutter slope will be adjusted to increase 

drainage, the curb ramps will be reconstructed to meet ADA requirements and STOP signs will be added 

to create a 4-way, STOP controlled intersection. In order to expedite the process in hopes of completing 

the construction before the rainy season, the project would need to be advertised, and awarded prior to 

the next City Council meeting. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

$25,000 with an additional $5,000 in contingency funds from the annual distribution of TDA fundiing. 

  



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 31 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-31 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE AUTHORIZES THE CITY MANAGER TO MOVE FORWARD WITH THE 
FINAL DESIGN, BID PROCESS AND CONSTRUCTION, AS WELL AS EXECUTE A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE 
DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE INTERSECTION OF 4TH STREET AND SHAW AVENUE AND AUTHORIZE THE 

SUBMITTAL OF THE NOTICE OF CEQA EXEMPTION. 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Ferndale wishes to improve drainage throughout the city; and, 
 
WHEREAS, The City wishes to delegate authorization to execute agreements for this project and any amendments 
to the City Manager; and 
 
WHEREAS,; The intersection of 4th Street and Shaw Avenue was built so that the crowned section of 4th Street is 
dominant through the intersection; and traffic along Shaw Ave has to dip down before the intersection, ramp up 
through the intersection, and dip down again before leaving; and 
 
WHEREAS, The additional traffic loads and pressures created by the dips have caused the concrete gutters and 
adjacent pavement to fail: the northwest corner of the intersection has become a large pothole that continues to 
grow every year; and 
 
WHEREAS, the damaged portion of the intersection will be removed and excavated in order to place additional 
base; and 
 
WHEREAS, the concrete gutter slope will be adjusted to increase drainage, the curb ramps will be reconstructed to 
meet ADA requirements and STOP signs will be added to create a 4-way, STOP controlled intersection; and, 
 
WHEREAS, In order to expedite the process in hopes of completing the construction before the rainy season, the 
project needs to be advertised, and awarded prior to the next City Council meeting; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Funding for this project will be drawn from the annual distribution of TDA funding in the amount of 
$25,000, with an additional $5,000 in contingency funds; and,    
 
WHEREAS, the proposed drainage improvement project for 4th and Shaw Ave. is exempt from the provisions of 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), pursuant to Class 1 Categorical Exemption, sections §15301 (c & 
d) Existing Facilities. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Ferndale authorizes the City Manager to 
move forward with the final design, bid process and construction, as well as execute a construction contract for 
the drainage improvements for the intersection of 4th Street and Shaw Avenue and approves the submittal of 
Notice of CEQA Exemption. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Ferndale on October 4, 2012 by the following vote: 
 
Ayes:   
Noes:  
Abstain:   
Absent:  
      _________________________________  
      Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
___________________________  
Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Clerk 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 32 

 

NOTICE OF CEQA EXEMPTION 

Pursuant to the Guidelines for Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act (California 

Code of Regulations, Title 14, Division 6, Chapter 3) §15062, the City of Ferndale as the CEQA Lead 

Agency is filing this Notice of Exemption with the Humboldt County Clerk, 825 5
th
 St, 5

th
 Floor, Eureka 

95501. 

 

PROJECT TITLE:  Minor Drainage Improvements 
PROJECT APPLICANT: The City of Ferndale   

PROJECT LOCATION, ZONING & GENERAL PLAN DESIGNATION: Public  

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  

The intersection at 4
th
 Street and Shaw Avenue has deteriorated creating a large dip that traffic must 

traverse it passes through the intersection.  The proposed project is to reconstruct the damaged portion of 

the intersection, improve drainage through the intersection, reconstruct the curb ramps to meet ADA 
compliance, and add STOP signs to create a 4-way STOP controlled intersection. 

 

The existing 12” drainage pipe below the northern side of Washington Street at Schley Avenue has 
collapsed.  The proposed project is to abandon the existing pipe in-place, install a new inlet and pipe to 

replace the collapsed pipe. 

 

LEAD AGENCY/CONTACT: City of Ferndale, Planning Department; Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Clerk; 
P.O. Box 1095 Ferndale CA 95536; phone (707) 786-4224; fax 786-9314; email 

cityclerk@ci.ferndale.ca.us  

EXEMPTION FINDINGS: The City of Ferndale, as Lead Agency, has determined that the above-described 
activity is a project subject to California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The City of Ferndale 5

th
 

Street Drainage Improvement Project is Class 1 Categorical Exemption under §15301 Existing Facilities. 

§15301(d)  “Restoration or rehabilitation of deteriorated or damaged structures, facilities … to meet 
current standards of public health and safety …”  Further, the Lead Agency has determined that the use of 

the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth in Section 15300.2 of the CEQA 

Guidelines. 

 
The material supporting the above finding is contained in the staff report prepared by the City of 

Ferndale’s Engineering Department.  Copies of the documents related to the evaluation of this project are 

available for review upon request at the Ferndale City Hall, address above. 

______________________________________  _________________________ 

Nancy Kaytis-Slocum     Date 

City Clerk, City of Ferndale 

 
Date received for filing by the Humboldt County Clerk): ___________________________________  

Period for Posting by County Clerk:       30 days  

 
Note to the County Clerk: Pursuant to the CEQA Guidelines, Section 15062, the City of Ferndale as CEQA Lead 

Agency is requesting that the Humboldt County Clerk post this Notice of Exemption within 24 hours of receipt, for a period of at 

least 30 days. Thereafter, please return this notice to Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Clerk, City of Ferndale, P.O. Box 1095, 
Ferndale CA 95536. 

  

mailto:cityclerk@ci.ferndale.ca.us


October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 33 

 

Meeting Date: October 4, 2012 Agenda Item Number 11E 

Agenda Item Title: Resolution 2012-29 Giving authorization to move forward with the final 
design, bid process and construction for the drainage Improvements on 5th 
St near the Ferndale housing complex and authorize the submittal of the 
Notice of CEQA Exemption. In addition, authorize the City Manager to 
execute a construction contract dependent upon environmental review 
clearance. 

Presented By: Jay Parrish, City Manager and Praj White, City Engineer 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required: Approve Resolution 2012-29  

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Resolution 2012-29 Authorizes moving forward with the final design, bid process and 

construction for the drainage Improvements on 5th Street near the Ferndale Housing Complex, 

authorizes the submittal of the Notice of CEQA Exemption and Authorizes the City Manager to 

execute a construction contract dependent upon environmental review clearance. 

BACKGROUND 

For a number of years this location has been a drainage problem and has resulted in flooding of 

the roadway. In order to alleviate the problem and meet the criteria in the drainage ordinance, 

the existing inlet and culvert will need to be replaced and the west ditch would need to be 

widened. In order to expedite the process in hopes of completing the construction before the 

rainy season, the project would need to be advertised, and awarded prior to the next City 

Council meeting. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

$60,000 with an additional $10,000 in contingency funds   



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 34 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-29 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE AUTHORIZES MOVING FORWARD WITH THE FINAL DESIGN, BID 
PROCESS AND CONSTRUCTION FOR THE DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS ON 5TH STREET, AUTHORIZES THE 

SUBMITTAL OF THE NOTICE OF CEQA EXEMPTION AND AUTHORIZES THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT DEPENDENT UPON ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW CLEARANCE 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Ferndale is undertaking a Fifth Street Drainage Improvement Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the project location is Fifth Street (Public), Residential (R1) and Agricultural (AE), APN’s 030-101-
007, 030-041-003 and 030-041-002; and 
 
WHEREAS, The project description is: The drainage inlet and culvert located on the east side of 5th Street just south 
of the northern entrance to the Fairview Drive loop has been an area of localized flood for years (2004 Drainage 
Master Plan Update for the City of Ferndale). 
 
The proposed project is to replace the deteriorating, undersized culvert beneath 5th Street just south of the 
northern entrance to the Fairview Drive loop and widen the ditch the culvert drains to.  The approximately 1.5 foot 
wide ditch begins at the west end of the culvert and heads approximately 900 linear feet west where it connects 
with another ditch at the City limits.  The proposed work includes widening the bottom width of the ditch to 4.0 
feet with 2:1 side slopes.  The current depth of the ditch ranges between about 1.0 -1.5 feet.  As part of the 
project, the depth of the ditch will be made a consistent 1.5 feet.  Small pools will be included for habitat benefits 
within the drainage ditch; and 
 
WHEREAS, In order to expedite the process in hopes of completing the construction before the rainy season, the 
project would need to be advertised, and awarded prior to the next City Council meeting; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City wishes to delegate authorization to execute a construction contract to the City Manager; and 
 
WHEREAS, Funding for the project would come from the Drainage Fund in the amount of $60,000, with an 
additional $10,000 in contingency funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, the project is a Class 1 Categorical Exemption under §15301 Existing Facilities. §15301(d)  
“Restoration or rehabilitation of deteriorated or damaged structures, facilities … to meet current standards 
of public health and safety …”  Further, the Lead Agency has determined that the use of the categorical 
exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth in Section 15300.2 of the CEQA Guidelines. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Ferndale authorizes moving forward 
with the final design, bid process and construction for the drainage improvements on 5th Street near the 
Ferndale Housing Complex, authorizes the submittal of the Notice of CEQA Exemption and Authorizes the 
City Manager to execute a construction contract dependent upon environmental review clearance. 
 
PASSSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Ferndale on October 4, 2012 by the following vote: 
Ayes:   
Noes: 
Abstain: 
Absent:  
      _________________________________  
Attest:      Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 
_________________________________  
Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Clerk 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 35 

 

  



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 36 

 

Meeting Date: October 4, 2012 Agenda Item Number 11F 

Agenda Item Title: Change in Police Department Budget 

Presented By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required: Authorization to recognize $2000.00 from PARSAC, our risk management 

authority, to pay Lexipol LLC for the police department’s policy manual, 

updates and daily training bulletins/tests.   

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff requests authorization to recognize $2000.00 from PARSAC, our risk management 

authority, to pay Lexipol LLC for the police department’s policy manual, updates and daily 

training bulletins/tests.  The revenue will be placed in the Police Special Services Revenue 

Account (10084291) and posted to the Lexipol Services Expenditure line item (10215053). 

DISCUSSION 

The Ferndale Police Department contracts with Lexipol LLC for its policy manual and updates.  

This also includes daily training bulletins and testing data.  The policy manual and updates are 

utilized by the majority of law enforcement agencies in the State of California.  Our annual 

subscription is $2,950.00.  The City’s risk management authority, PARSAC, pays $2000.00 

toward the annual subscription and the police department is responsible for $950.00. 

PARSAC normally issues a check for $2000.00 directly to Lexipol and the police department pays 

our $950.00 portion from our line item 10215053.  This fiscal year PARSAC sent their check to 

the City of Ferndale.  Subsequently, the money was available to pay the annual subscription; 

however, the line item does not reflect the additional revenue.  The line item will appear to be 

$2000.00 overspent; however, this was not the case due to the $2000.00 check from PARSAC. 

Staff requests this money be used to reimburse the Lexipol Services line item to pay the annual 

service. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

An increase of $2000.00 to the Police Special Services Revenue Account (10084291) and a 

corresponding increase of $2000.00 to the Lexipol Services Expenditure line item (10215053). 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 37 

 

Section 12 

CORRESPONDENCE 

Correspondence Files are available for review at City Hall during 
regular business hours, Monday through Thursday, 9am to 4pm. 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 38 

 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 39 

 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 40 

 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 41 

 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 42 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 43 

 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 44 

 

  



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 45 

 

Section 13 

REPORTS 
 

Section 13a:  City Manager Staff Report 
 

CITY MANAGER: 
 
Meetings and Projects:  
 

 Kiwanis meeting 1st and 3rd Tuesday of the month at 4:30 pm 

 Separate meetings with Gerald Silva, David Yarrington, and County planning staff regarding new 
route to Russ Park 

 Discussions with Karen Clower (September 1st) of the County regarding the use of City Hall for 
budgetary meetings in March that may be televised through Access Humboldt. 

 City Council – September 6th  – 7:00-8:30 pm  

 Kiwanis Bocce Tournament  – Sept 8th - All day 

 SRWC – August 28th- 2:00-5:00 pm 

 Design Review- Sept 13, 20, and 27th - 8:30 am 

 SRWC meeting- Sept 11th - 2:00-5:00 pm 

 RCEA  Board meeting – Sept 17th -  3:15-5:00 pm  

 City Manager meeting- Sept 20th - 3:00-5:00 pm  

 Meeting with Donna Chambers (RCD) regarding Mike Thompson and Jimmy Smith event on Sept 22 

 Salt River Restoration Event - Sept 22nd 1:00-2:00 pm 

 Met with PW regarding daily routine. Focus this month was on Francis Creek maintenance and 
drainage projects we want to complete before the weather changes this fall. We have a collapsed 
culvert on Washington that needs to be remedied, as well as a drainage problem on 5th Street.   

 Number of conversations with non-profit representative regarding condition of carpet in Library and 
a submission of a grant proposal for replacement. We were successful and the library is in the 
process of scheduling the installation of the carpet. We should be very proud of our library which is 
one of the only libraries in the county that is partially funded by their City. In the last several years 
we have put a new roof, a new handrail system, painted the outside of the building, and replaced all 
the lighting fixtures inside through grants. 

 Conversations with Donna Chambers of RCD regarding planning for the celebration events related to 
the Salt River Restoration Project. The first event on September 22nd would be in Firemen’s Park 
from 1:00-2:00 pm and would focus on a salute to Mike Thompson and Jimmy Smith for all energy 
and effort they put in to helping this project get off the ground.  The ceremony was a great success 
and was well attended not only by Congressmen Thompson and former Supervisor Smith, but by 
many dignitaries and agency representatives. Mayor Farley kicked off the event with a short history 
and introduced Watershed Director Dave Carr. Director Carr explained that our organization has 
been focused on helping property owners understand the project and developing a procedure to 
make sure we are able to maintain the drainage system once the project is complete. Councilmen 
Mierzwa gave a great history of the project and referred to the many individuals that have been 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 46 

 

associated with the project over the course of many decades. Since the event we have received the 
Coastal Development permit, which will allow us to move forward with the project.  

 Met with City Managers and CAO to go over the process of transfer of new ownership of Suddenlink. 
Access Humboldt is continuing to follow up with the Buske Group and Suddenlink regarding 
ownership transfer. The Buske Group feels that we will be able to plan for action steps which will 
require each jurisdiction to adopt a resolution approving a Transfer Agreement. They are working on 
the conditions of that agreement now.  

 ERD contract negotiations: Karen Smith and I met a few times to go over our greenwaste program 
and she said that there was no desire on ERD’s side to increase rates for the service at this time, and 
I have had no reports or complaints about the program since it began. We will bring this to the 
Council for a one year extension. 

 Daily meetings with chief regarding police activities and community safety issues. 

 Conversations with Wastewater operators regarding compliance related, personnel related issues 
and scheduling. Also many sludge related alternatives and guidance to reduce associated weight and 
costs. CPO went over the latest alternative which would be an agreement with a permitted local 
facility to take our sludge and at the same time turn over all liability associated with it. I also spoke 
with Lisa Bernard about this possibility and she said that she was in favor of the program. I received 
a contract for six months and had our attorney review it. He made a few changes but all-in-all it 
looks like it will save the City substantially over our previous process. 

 Daily interaction with Staff regarding workload. We have a new Administrative Assistant, Lacy 
Pedrotti, and we are bringing her up to speed as quickly as possible in anticipation of our Finance 
Director, Debbie Austrus taking time off to recover from surgery. Lacey has been with us a couple of 
weeks and is catching on very quickly. 

 Numerous conversations regarding Salt River Project with Watershed Council members, RCD 
representatives, council members and citizens. We continue work with property owners in effort to 
get support for the project. We now have all property owners on board and are meeting with 
Coastal Committee in hopes of getting the development permit. 

 Frequent conversations with John Driscoll and Congressmen Thompson representatives and Coast 
Guard (CG) representatives regarding the MOU to retain Fresnel lens at Fairgrounds while giving us 
time to secure funding to reassemble lens in the museum. The Coast Guard has plans to start 
disassembly around September 9th, with that process taking around a week. The City and Shining 
Light Foundation (SLF) will have four years according to the MOU to raise the required funds. It has 
been a long process negotiating with the CG in an effort to keep the lens in our community where it 
has resided for over sixty-three years.  The Shining Light Foundation which is comprised of the City, 
County Fair, Chamber of Commerce, the Museum, and the Ferndale Enterprise should be 
commended for its time and efforts to retain this iconic artifact which is part of our historic fiber. 
We also had numerous conversations with SLF members regarding the preparation of temporary 
housing building to make sure it was compliant with CG guidelines. The City has used its approved 
share of funding to prepare the temporary building with climate control equipment. This equipment 
will eventually be moved with the lens to the museum site to perform the same function. The setup 
will also include a daily monitoring capability that will produce a record of the humidity and 
temperature that we will annually send to Coast Guard Curator. The report that was produced by 
the disassembly team said that the lens was in relatively good condition as a result of the sixty-four 
years of stewardship by the County Fair. 

 Numerous meetings with Gerald Silva related to possible agreement on Russ Park access. David 
Yarrington is working with Planwest and putting together an estimate of costs associated with a 
possible trade of some land that would allow Russ Park enthusiasts to enter the park just past the 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 47 

 

water company on Eugene Street. In analyzing the procedure with the County it was pointed out 
that the Siva property was under the Williamson Act and that would complicate the process and 
that we might consider waiting until that came out of the Act in 2014. We are in the process of 
talking to all parties to get consensus before moving forward.    

 Numerous meetings with individual councilmen and the mayor regarding City issues, and updates 
about representation on the various joint power authorities the City are members of.  

 Sculpture in City Green was taken away at the end of April and we are trying to replace with a 
student sculpture from HSU. I am working with Sondra Schwetman of the Art Department in an 
effort to start some type of rotational exhibit. She is excited about the possibilities and is in the 
process of putting a proposal together that will possibly allow the City to have a sculpture from HSU 
students on a rotational basis. We are looking forward to participating with HSU on this project. I 
met with Sondra on September 5th, and we have started the process. It will take around a year for 
the students to go through the process and for us to see a sculpture back on the green. 

 The Sign Ordinance Committee is making good progress. The current ordinance and procedures are 
still in effect and businesses must still go through Design Review and procedures for placement of 
signs and related issues. Staff is in the process of writing a letter to business district updating our 
progress and reminding them that there were non-compliant situations before we started this 
process and that although there may be changes in what is and is not allowed, we will be enforcing 
whatever the Council approves at the end of this process.   

 Discussions with City Planner regarding Design Review and planning issues.  Planning Commission 
continues to have presentations related to the Safety Element. 

 Several conversations with Cybelle Immitt who is a senior planner for the County. Cybelle led a 
coalition of cities and agencies back in 2008 through a process to develop Hazard Mitigation Plans 
(HMP) for those agencies and the County. Those migration plans had a shelf life of 5 years and now 
we are required to update our previous plans.  The goal of this planning effort is to update data for 
the natural hazards that could impact the planning area to determine the level of risk, update the 
identification of actions and activities that can reduce any losses from those hazards, and 
reinvigorate the coordinated process of implementing the plan. Back in of October of last year the 
Council approved a match of $2,500 dollars to continue our participation in this program to update 
our HMP. The fiscal match was waved as a consequence of representation on the steering 
committee.  

 We have successfully initiated in conjunction/collaboration with Leland Rock and Gerald Silva a 
monitoring program to watch and record any movement of last year’s slide area. This area looks 
stable and we will continue to monitor. Tom Stevens is monitoring the site for the City and has 
reported no movement so far and he is pleased with what he sees to this point. He commented at 
the Drainage Committee meeting that the slide was about twice as long as originally reported and 
that he will continue to monitor at pre-determined times of the year dependent on weather events. 

 Numerous discussions with City Planner regarding design review and planning issues. We are in the 
final stages of completing the Design Review Process and the Final Review for Design Review 
Applications. 

 Numerous discussions with our Planner and City Inspector and staff about the Kinetic building 
downtown that has had stucco removed from the front of the building. The City Inspector approved 
an emergency demolition permit to remove the stucco at the request of their structural engineer. 
The property manager will then apply for building permit to address whatever structural issues it 
may have. The construction project seems to be at the end of the repairs and the City Inspector is 
waiting for documentation from engineer of exactly what those repairs included. When the 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 48 

 

inspector has approved that step the City will accept an application that addresses what will replace 
the original material. 

 Numerous conversations with the new Gingerbread property owner and manager regarding 
renovation plans, ideas and design review applications. They have made great headway and the 
building is truly being brought back to match its iconic status and contribute as a resource for many 
decades.  

 Spoke with several pastors in the town who expressed an interest in helping put a new coat of paint 
on City Hall. The Rotary has approved a grant that will pay for the paint. We intend to replace 
gutters before painting. I also intend to repair the windows around City Hall that are in need of 
rehabilitation. I have this grant proposal already going through the system and we should know 
within a month or so. 

 Inside the council chambers we have improvements to the stage area, including the sound system 
and curtains. I have received bids on curtains and gutters. Sound Advice is giving us a bid on the 
sound system, which will replace our system with new microphones for the council, staff and public, 
and will also include all amplifiers and speaker systems. They will also look at some type of acoustic 
design change for best performance of the system. If we are able to garner the funds for these 
improvements we will be able to consider having the capability to have certain venues carried on 
our local Access Humboldt cable network. A majority of these improvements will go through the 
Village Club and supported by the City. There are also some kitchen renovations involved with these 
other improvements. The grant application is in the process of being considered.  

 The City Managers group is working with Access Humboldt to analyze the requirements we need to 
go through as a result of the change in ownership of Suddenlink. 

 Numerous conversations with resident who lives beside E Street and put up a fence that shortened 
the dead-end street by about thirty feet in 2000. The property owner has informed the City that he 
intends to take the fence down by November 15th. This was on the PC agenda and they did not 
recommend further action. 

 A little over a year ago we were able to work out an agreement that would allow us to get a new car 
for our police department for approximate two years and then turn it over to a cab company for 
them to put it into cab service. This has worked out well for us and we are looking forward to 
another car under the same plan. We should be receiving the additional car sometime this month. 

 Met with Michael Sweeney to go over any questions he might have regarding his new position as a 
Councilmen.   

 A number of discussions with RWQCB representatives and County representatives regarding the 
wastewater disposal site and the condition of the receiving water streambed condition as it relates 
to drainage in that area. The concern is what interim needs are there before the SRRP addresses in 
phase two a long term solution to flooding issues in that area. 

 
FINANCE MANAGER: 
 
Meetings  

 Meeting with City Manager on Office Issues 

 CAL OSHA Webinar 

 Meeting with City Manager to interview new Admin. Asst. 
Projects 

 Payroll 

 Accounts Payable 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 49 

 

 Accounts Receivable 

 Answer Phones 

 Purchase Various Supplies 

 Receive and File July Financial Reports 

 Train Admin Asst. on Accounts Payables 

 Train Admin Asst. on Payroll 

 LAWCX PARSAC Report 

 Closed USDA Account & Transferred to General Account 

 Update July Financial Budget 

 Update Chart of Accounts 

 Reconcile Bank Account 

 Excess Liability PARSAC Report 

 
CITY CLERK ACTIVITY 
 
Meetings  

 Daily meetings with Office Manager and/or City Manager regarding work schedule. 

 City Council meeting 9/6/12. 

 Drainage Committee Meeting 9/13/12. 
 
Projects 

 Counter and phones. 

 Pick up mail, copy, distribute and file. 

 Continue to work with InLight Fitness regarding MOU with the city for the use of the Community 
Center for a reasonable fee of $5.00 per hour. 

 Prepared Drainage Committee Agenda for September 13th. 

 ERMA Training online. Slowly catching up on missed training while on Family Leave last year. 

 Filed August report of Building or Zoning Permits issued for new privately-owned housing units. 

 Organize quotes for work at City Hall. 

 City Council Meeting Follow-up 
o Printed, signed, posted online and filed 8/23/12 and 8/2/12 minutes 
o Filed Resolution 2012-25 Approving the submittal of a Functional Classification Change for 

Local Streets and Roads to the State of California, Department of Transportation. Copy for 
City Engineers. 

o Filed Ordinance 2012-03 “An Ordinance amending Purchasing Ordinance 07-04 Section 6.01 
Pertaining to Bidding Procedure;” Posted public notice on Ordinance, Revised Purchasing 
Ordinance 07-04 with amendment, and re-posted online. 

 Prepared City Council packet for October 4, 2012 meeting 

 Election Duties: approved Ballot artwork. Issued paperwork for Write In Candidate. 

 Prepared Design Review meeting packet for 9/20 and for 9/27 

 Prepared Sign Committee meeting packet for 9/20 

 Prepared Planning Commission packet for 9/19 

 Organizing Design Review applications on Administrative Assistant’s desk. 

 Follow-up on Francis Creek Cleanup letters. 

 Entered 4-H meetings on Community Center and City Hall Calendars. 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 50 

 

 Worked with Vikki Young of the Ferndale Rep Theatre to set up rehearsal dates at the Community 
Center and City Hall for use from September 21 through November 19th. 

 Training with Finance Manager on Payroll and Accounts Payable 

 Work with City Manager and Public Works on creek walk results. 
 
Land Use, Building and Encroachment Permits Issued 

 

Building Permits  

161 Francis Replace post and pier foundation 

1182 Rose Reroof Garage and addition 

515 Fifth Street reroof 

1182 Rose Bldg Inspection – Consultation 

 

Land Use Permits  

1085 Main Paint House 

820 Herbert Reroof 

580 Main Sign 

161 Francis paint 

375A MaIn Workshop 

 

 
CITY PLANNER: 
 
Meetings, Planning & Coordination 

 Coordinated with City Manager, City Clerk, and Deputy City Clerk on planning and development 
projects.  

 Prepared cost estimates for CEQA environmental review documents at request of City Clerk. 

 Responded to property owner questions regarding converting an existing structure on the property 
into a dwelling space.  Coordinated with City Clerk to advise resident on options.   

 Prepared staff report regarding request for a revocable easement for a fence in a public right of way 
and drafted sample easement; presented at August 29 Planning Commission meeting.  Presented 
follow-up report at September 19 Planning Commission meeting regarding applicant’s revocation of 
request.  

 Coordinated with City Clerk on process for notifying resident of Design Review Combining Zone 
violation for removal of a contributing feature from a listed building in the Historic District. 

 Continued coordination on alleviating issues stemming from Russ Park access across private land. 

 Responded to questions regarding unsafe building requirements in                       response to 
demolition permit application.   

 Wrote and mailed application incomplete letter to applicant for siding repair at 535 Main St. 

 Coordinated with City Clerk and City Manager to draft email to Ferndale resident outlining City 
requirements for a Design Review Use Permit application for stucco removal in the Historic District. 

 
Projects 
 General Plan Update—Prepared Draft General Plan Safety Element Settings & Context and Geologic 

& Seismic Hazards chapters and presented at 8/29 Planning Commission meeting.  Arranged study 
session presentation by Troy Nicolini, Warning Coordination Meteorologist for the National Weather 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 51 

 

Service in Eureka, tsunami program manager for northwestern California, and co- chair of the 
Redwood Coast Tsunami Work Group.  Rescheduled presentation for January 16 study session.   
Prepared Draft Flooding & Drainage Hazards chapter and presented at 9/19 Planning Commission 
meeting.  Arranged study session with presentation by Sherry Constancio of the Department of 
Water Resources Division of Flood Management and Reginald Kennedy of the National Weather 
Service.       

 Design Review Use Permit Application Process –Made additional changes to application process as 
directed by Design Review Committee at 7/26 Committee meeting.  Prepared staff report and final 
draft of application process for 8/23 meeting. Meeting was cancelled due to lack of quorum; revised 
all materials for 9/27 meeting.   

 
 

CITY ENGINEER: 
 
Sewer Projects  – 
o Working on a proposed capital improvement report (sewer) 

 Met with Doug and discussed scope of projects to be included and priority ranking. Working on 
updated cost estimate and map for DRAFT submittal.  

 
Pedestrian Improvement Project -  
o Rose Street: (Phase 2) 

 $250,000.00 has been granted to the City of Ferndale for Transportation Enhancement 
(pedestrian improvements) on Rose Street.    

 Design development and preparation of construction documents have been authorized.  

 Preparing the environmental study and preliminary design. 
 

Applications –  
o Mr. Willis Hadley - Francis Street Project:  A letter has been forwarded to the owner regarding the 

requirements that need to be met in order for the application to be approved. Still waiting for 
response. 

o Beal LLA approved. 
 
General Engineering –  
o 5th Street Flooding in front of Navy House Parcel – Solution determined 

 Conceptual design approved by the Drainage Review Committee. 

 Preparing to meet with the property owner to discuss proposed design and potential 
easements. 

 Preparing to meet with the Department of Fish and Game to discuss and potential 
environmental concerns regarding the proposed ditch location and excavation.  

o Working on a Project Study Report for resurfacing Berding Street 

 Determining possible solutions and cost estimates based on the Pavement Condition Index 
Report. 

o Discussed results of the Project Initiation Document for the intersection of 4th and Shaw Ave.  

 Design has been completed. Waiting on responses from the School Superintendent and Police 
Chief to express any concerns with the project being constructed before the rainy season. 

o Working on a proposed capital improvement report (roads and drainage) 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 52 

 

 Met with Tim and discussed scope of projects to be included and priority ranking. Working on 
updated cost estimate and map for DRAFT submittal. 

o Working on Roadway Functional Classification change 

 Cal Trans has approved the map change and submitted the revisions to FHWA for approval. 
o Washington St. drainage culvert repair. 

 Prepared the agenda item for the City Council meeting. 
 

Meetings and Committees –  
o HCAOG  

o Attend TAC meetings 
o Drainage Review Committee 

o Attended Drainage Review Committee 
 

Reporting and Correspondence –  
o Prepared monthly staff report 
o General correspondence and meetings with City Staff  

 
 
WASTEWATER OPERATIONS: 
 
 CPO complete Sewer Tax audit and Assessor report. 

 OIT assisted operator Coppini with moving irrigation pipes 

 CPO worked on North Coast CWEA award nominations. We are nominating the facility for Plant of 
the Year and also Manhard LTD for Engineering Excellence. If our facility is chosen for the North 
Coast we will qualify for nomination for the State award. 

 Met with Hank Brenard of HBE to discuss biosolids disposal and management. His company is 
sending us a proposal to take all our biosolids.  

 Discussed California Toxic Rule(CTR) constituents for the next permit with Lisa Bernard. (See below 
regarding copper WER) 

 Sent historical CTR data to Lisa B for review and possible removal from permit.  

 CPO updated City Manager on biosolids handling options. 

 Ordered uniform shirts for OIT Ivey 

 Lateral tests performed at 825 Main, 505 Shamsi and 558 Watson 

 Issues with Influent PLC discussed with and fixed by Portland Engineering Inc. 

 Assist City Manager with Bocce Tournament poster 

 Assist office with computer issues 

 Drain and wash debris from disc filter #2. 

 CPO attend waste diversion meeting with HWMA in Eureka. 

 Ordered hoist and trolley truck for lifting apparatus for influent pump removal. 

 CPO discuss biosolids management options with Mike Flockhart from City of Fortuna. 

 CPO review draft NPDES permit proposed by the Regional Board 

 Started profile with Waste Management in Redding regarding taking our biosolids. Sampling has 
been done and awaiting results. 

 City annual review with CalRecycle with City Manager and CPO at City Hall. Discussed our recycling 
programs and future ideas. 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 53 

 

 Motor Operated Valve (MOV) from the pond has an issue with sealing on close. Manufacturer was in 
to replace the valve but it was found to not be seating properly. Tech was able to get it into place 
and it is working fine. We have been able to backflow sewage from the pond as the irrigation 
pumping schedule is increased. The pond has dropped 18 inches in a week. 

 Boom truck in to clear influent pumps. 

 Staff performed process tests to assist in the operation of the facility. 

 Operator Coppini manage biosolids handling with turning and mixing to get maximum dry. 

 OIT Ivey perform quarterly cleaning of the disc filters 

 Mow and weedwack along road adjacent to facility 

 CPO continued discussion on capital improvement plans with Manhard to coordinate any work 
being done on the roads. 

 After submitting results from the copper Water Effects Ratio(WER) test that was completed last 
month it was found that copper will be removed from our permit completely. The ultimate goal was 
to increase the limit of copper we could have to reduce or eliminate any fines related to non-
compliance. Not only did we get copper removed but additionally, all monitoring for metals and 3 
other parameters were removed based on our past history compared to the new facility. Two of our 
constituents were left in the permit but just for monitoring only with no limits. After a series of 
results have been submitted we can petition to have those removed all-together also. The cost 
saved by not running these monthly tests in the winter will pay for the WER study within the cycle of 
the permit. Since there were so many changes in our favor the Regional Board thought it best to 
issue us an entirely new permit rather than trying to amend the current one. The new permit will go 
out for public comment next month and before the Board for approval in December and will be 
effective until 2017. 

 Sent letter to Regional Board asking to add Operator Steve Coppini on the list of authorized signers 
and report submitters. 

 Took composite samples from dried biosolids in storage for sampling to determine whether it would 
classify as A grade biosolids for land application anywhere without a permit. Still waiting for test 
results. 

 Checked for a sewer backup at 420 Schley as per customer phone call. Staff checked and found that 
the blockage was on the customer’s side and is their responsibility. 

 Continued to work through some process issues at the plant. Flows are decreasing and therefore the 
biological process is changing. 

 CPO met with reps from Fortuna Iron to finalize the construction of a small, portable hoist that can 
be used for removing the small influent pumps for routine maintenance. 

 Completed and submitted monthly electronic annual report for the Regional Board  

 The facility received a total of 16 septic dumps from Roto Rooter & Wyckoff’s totaling 24,400 gallons 
and generating $4,392 in revenue for the facility.  

 Plant DATA updated on SEMS software 

 CPO attended CWEA board meeting in Eureka 

 Monthly eSMR was submitted 

 Staff performed routine process tests in our lab. 

 Prepared monthly sample containers 

 Filled out POs for monthly invoices 

 Monthly samples picked up by NCL 

 Operator Coppini performed general maintenance around the facility 

 Operator Coppini filed online SSO report.  



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 54 

 

 Operator Coppini performed the normal in-house weekly and monthly testing and scheduled lab 
work to be done. 

 There were no biosolids disposed of during the month of August. All biosolids were managed on site 
for drying. 

 No violations were reported during the month 

 Total flows through the collection system were 5.644 MG. The average flow was .182 MGD. Of that, 
1.651 MG was pumped to the equalization pond. 

 Influent flows that were treated through the facility totaled 3.981 MG for the month of August. The 
average flow was .128 MGD.  

 Irrigation flows totaled 3.992 MG for the month of August. The average flow was .129 MGD. 
 

 
PUBLIC WORKS: 
 
CITY PROPERTY 

 Firemen’s Park 
o Routine Maintenance, i.e. Mowing Park and Baseball Field. 
o Routine daily walk through to pick-up garbage.  
o Contractor installing a 10’ fence gate at the outfield fence. 
o Pulled an alder log from the creek at the park. 
o Cleaned all over the park, bocce and parking area from the Beer and Bocce Tourney. 

 Park Restrooms 
o Routinely cleaned every day of the week including weekends. 

 Russ Park 
o Routine maintenance: Pulling out trash from trash & recycle bins as needed. 
o Picked-up loose garbage from Russ Park. 

 Town Hall 
o Routine mowing and weedeating 
o Pull out trash daily 

 Library 
o Routine mowing and weed eating 

 City Parking Lot 
o Picked up garbage – Routinely as least once a week unless otherwise warranted. 
o Restriped lot – painted parking stripes. 

o Met with property owner by the City Parking Lott regarding trees in the creek. 
o Removed broken top of a tree from the creek at the parking lot. 

 Main Street Restrooms 
o Routine maintenance: Daily cleaning and stocking of Main Street Restrooms – 7 days a week. 

 Community Center 
o Routine checking of CC when the facility is rented before and after. 
o Showing CC to potential renters as needed 
o Unwired override switches to the refrigerator. This switch was accidentally turned off. 
o Restriped parking lot. 
o Installed new power head for the bathroom fan. 

 Police Department 
o Routine mowing and weed eating 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 55 

 

 Scout Hall - Routine mowing and weedeating  

 Roadsides - Routine mowing and weed eating 

 Public Works –  
o Washed the gas tank. 

 

STREETS, SIDEWALKS and STORMDRAINS 

 Routine maintenance: Regular maintenance of roadside mowing. 

 Routine picking up trash at the edge of town. 

 Routine maintenance: Continuing to pick-up piles around town as resident call and request removal. 

 Routine maintenance: Sweep Main St., Monday, Wednesday and Friday mornings. 

 Marked out USA locates throughout town. – When needed. 

 Removing piles. 

 Continuing to patch the roads as needed. 

 Road patch Rose and Berding streets. 

 Installed handicap sign and post at the Gingerbread Mansion. Painted the curb blue. 

 Patched a valley in the gutter at 4th and Shaw. The concrete was broken up. Working with Manhardt 
on this. 

 Drainage on Washington St. to be addressed by the city engineer. Waiting on a start date. 

 Painting green curbs throughout town and adding white “20 minutes street side parking” lettering 
on the green area. 

 Painted the crosswalks at 5th and Shaw and 5th and Ocean. 

 Painted stop bars and signs. 

 Picked up garbage all over the city limits from Bargain Lovers Weekend. 

 Removed dead deer from 591 Van Ness. 

 Cleaned Main St. due to a car crash. Glass, Oil and parts etc. 

 Removed debris from all the drains and grates around town. – 

 
VEHICLE / EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 

 Routine monthly maintenance and weekly maintenance on frequently used equipment. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 Routine paperwork. 

 Dealing with daily work orders as residents call. 

 Viewed Safety videos. 

 Went to Bay West to pick up supplies. 

 Follow up on creek clean-up. 
 

 
POLICE DEPARTMENT: 
 
 Faraz Soltani was sworn in as a Seasonal Police Officer.   

 Lee Haldorson was sworn in as a Level I Reserve Officer. 

 The California Law Enforcement Association of Records Supervisors (CLEARS) and the Ferndale 
Police Department hosted training at Town Hall on September 23.  There were 30 attendees. 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 56 

 

 Officer Diaz participated with the Fire Department in planning a joint prevention day at the Ferndale 
Elementary School. 

 Chief Smith attended Kiwanis meetings/functions. 

 Chief Smith attended the monthly LECAH meeting. 

 Chief Smith attended the monthly Community Corrections Partnership Executive Committee. 

 Officer Diaz attended the monthly LETMA meeting. 

Police Statistics – August 2011 

SERIOUS CRIMES Number Cleared 

Homicide 0   

Rape 0   

Robbery 0   

Larceny 1   

Assault 2   

Burglary 1   

Vehicle Theft 0  

  

TOTAL 4 

SECONDARY CRIMES 12 

Calls for Service 65 

Reports Written 22 

  

  

Traffic Citations 12 

Other Citations 6 

Parking Citations 0 

Warnings 45 

ARRESTS 10 

AGENCY ASSISTS 15 

TRAFFIC COLLISIONS 1 

 

 

 

  



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 57 

 

Section 13b: Commissions, Committees and Other 

  City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
Design Review Minutes for the 06/21/12 8:30am meeting 

 
Chairman Dan Brown opened the meeting at 8:40 a.m. Committee Members Michael Sweeney, 
Lino Mogni, Michael Bailey and Dane Cowan along with staff Deputy City Clerk Brianna Smith 
were present along with members of the public Dennis DelBiaggio and applicants Michael and 
Gina Warner. 
 

Modifications to agenda- Move 5c before 5a 
 

724 Main Street- The Committee all agreed that they would like to see more details before the 
approve Phase 2 of the application. MOTION: (Cowan/Sweeney) Approve Phase 1 of the 
application. Unanimous. 
 

1289 Main Street-   MOTION: (Sweeney/Bailey) Approve application as presented. Unanimous. 
 

207 Francis St- Tabled until paint colors for gutters are decided. 
 

The meeting adjourned at 9:19AM. The next meeting regular meeting will be June 28, 2012 
 

Respectfully submitted: Brianna Smith Deputy City Clerk  
 

  City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
 Design Review Minutes for the 06/28/12 8:30am meeting 

 

Chairman Dan Brown opened the meeting at 8:34 a.m. Committee Members Michael Bailey, 
Michael Sweeney, Lino Mogni and Dane Cowan were present along with staff City Manager Jay 
Parrish, City Planner Melanie Rheaume and Deputy City Clerk Brianna Smith. Also present were 
applicant Jim Roberson and William Warren. 
 

No public comment 
 

Approval of the May 24, 2012 minutes: MOTION: (Cowan/Mogni). Approve minutes as 
presented. Unanimous. 
 

Approval of the May 31, 2012 minutes: MOTION: (Brown/Cowan). Approve minutes as 
presented. Unanimous. 
 

 923 Main Street- MOTION: (Cowan/Bailey). Approve application as presented. Unanimous. 
 
Design Review Procedure- City Planner Melanie Rheaume gave an update on the Design Review 
process and let the Committee know that Planwest is working to update the DR process to 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 58 

 

come into compliance with the Zoning Ordinance.  She went over the draft changes made to 
the application explain that they have combined the Historic and DR application into one. The 
Demolition Process was also discussed, it was explained that we don’t have a current process 
for demolition and that it is something that should be discussed. City Planner Rheaume also 
discussed a DR manual that will address the DR process, the Historic District as well as DR 
guidelines.  Committee members asked for time to review the draft changes made to the DR 
application and this will be brought back at the next regular meeting to discuss further.  
 

Final Procedure for DR Applications- Chairman Brown brought two applications forward that 
did not comply with what their applications had stated; 

1. 1430 Main St, the pattern of the siding under the window is similar to how it was 
before, but it’s not exactly the same as the applicant stated. It was decided that City 
Manager Jay Parrish, along with Committee members Dan Brown and Dane Cowan 
would meet with applicant Mitch Tonini to discuss the siding.  

2. 777 Main Street, the application for a carport was denied and the applicant went ahead 
and put up a plastic carport without permission from the Committee. There was 
question to whether or not this was a temporary structure or a permanent structure. 
Staff will look into this and report back at the next meeting.  

 

The meeting adjourned at 9:35AM. The next meeting regular meeting will be July 26, 2012. 
 

Respectfully submitted, Brianna Smith Deputy City Clerk 
 

  City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
Design Review Minutes for the 07/19/12 8:30am meeting 

 
Chairman Dan Brown opened the meeting at 8:32 a.m. Committee Members Michael Sweeney, 
Lino Mogni, Michael Bailey and Dane Cowan along with staff City Manager Jay Parrish and 
Deputy City Clerk Brianna Smith were present. 
 

1085 Main Street-  MOTION: (Cowan/Mogni). Approve color choices as presented. Unanimous. 
 

820 Herbert-   MOTION: (Mogni/Bailey). Approve application as presented. Unanimous. 
 

Committee Comments. Committee member Dane Cowan and City Manager Jay Parrish gave an 
update on final approval of the siding at 1430 Main Street. Committee member Cowan and City 
Manager Parrish met with applicant, Mitch Tonini to discuss the siding under the window and 
how it is different from what was stated on the application, after some discussion with the 
applicant the problem was resolved to Committee member Cowan’s satisfaction and was 
approved. 
 

The meeting adjourned at 9:23AM. The next meeting regular meeting will be June 26, 2012 
 

Respectfully submitted: Brianna Smith Deputy City Clerk  



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 59 

 

 

  C i t y  o f  F e r n d a l e ,  H u m b o l d t  C o u n t y ,  C a l i f o r n i a  U S A  
Drainage Committee MINUTES for the Meeting of May 24, 2012, 4:00 p.m.   

 

Vice Chairman Richard Hooley called the meeting to order at 4:05 pm. Committee members 
Tom Stephens, Lee Tomasini and Jim Bass as well as City Manager Jay Parrish and City Clerk 
Nancy Kaytis-Slocum were present. Stuart Titus was absent. 
 
Under Public Comment, Tom Stephens talked about the Francis Creek Slide. He has visited the 
site three times, after getting access permission from the property owners, Leland Rock and 
Gerald Silva. Stephens put in 12 stakes approximately 10’ apart. The plug in the channel is 
about 3000 to 4000’ long, 80’ wide and 15’ deep. Stephens returned after about 10” of rain, 
and the stakes hadn’t moved. However, the dam is started to give way and the sides of the 
channel are falling in. There is a waterfall over the top. When Stephens visited the third time, 
the stakes still hadn’t moved. He will return just before it rains again. Downstream of the slide, 
there is lots of sediment in the stream. There are tension cracks at the top of the slide; 
however, not much can be done. There is about 100’ fall from the toe of the dam to where it 
levels out near the waterworks bridge. 
 
Minutes: The modified 6/9/11 minutes as presented were unanimously approved by MOTION 
(Tomasini/Bass). 
 
Creek Walk: City Manager Parrish reported rather than having each property owner on the 
creek have to deal with The Department of Fish & Game, the City took over the responsibility 
for walking the creek and deciding which vegetation has to be removed.  All members of the 
committee would like to be notified when the Creek Walk will take place. City Manager Parrish 
showed a map that is being developed showing drainage easements.  
 
Comments: City Manager Parrish reported that our drainage project for this year is to put 
another Drainage Inlet across from Hamper’s property on 5th Street. Committee Vice Chair Dick 
Hooley asked that drainage on 5th Street from the Hamper property be on the next agenda. He 
is concerned that a drainage pipe under the sidewalk may be inadequate, and is currently 
plugged.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:45 pm. The next meeting will be September 27, 2012 starting 
at 4pm. (The third Thursday has a conflicting meeting.) 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Clerk 
  



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 60 

 

C i t y  o f  F e r n d a l e ,  H u m b o l d t  C o u n t y ,  C a l i f o r n i a  U S A  
Minutes for Planning Commission Meeting of August 29, 2012 

 

Call to Order: Chair Jorgen Von Frausing-Borch called the Planning Commission meeting to order at 
7:02pm.  Commissioners Dan Brown, Uffe Christiansen, Trevor Harper, and Lino Mogni along with staff 
City Manager Jay Parrish, Deputy City Clerk Brianna Smith, and City Planner Melanie Rheaume .Those in 
attendance pledged allegiance to the flag. MOTION: (Brown/Christiansen). The July 18, 2012 minutes 
were unanimously approved. 
 

Modifications to the agenda: City Manger Parrish asked that Item 6.3 the Revocable Easement for E-
Street be moved to the first item.  No Public Comment. 
 

Recvocable Easement for E-Street:  City Planner Melanie Rheaume briefly gave a background on the E- 
Street Revocable Easement. She Let the Commissioners know that the applicant had asked the City to 
wave the fee for the Easement. It was added that since this issue was brought forth by City officials that 
it didn’t seem fair for the applicant to pay. City Planner Melanie Rheaume asked that the PC 
Commissioner look over the draft easement. A Commissioner asked how this issue affects the Fosters, 
who also use the fence. City staff explained that the Fosters were in full support in keeping the fence, 
but have not requested anything. Mr Hooley gave some background on the fence. He explained to the 
Commissioners that he had installed the fence after he had some conversations with then Public Works 
Director Mr. Taubitz in 2001. He had asked Mr. Taulbitz if he needed permission from the City to clean 
up the area and install a fence between his property and the Foster’s property. His informal response 
was that he saw no need to get formal approval. Ron Smith, who lives at the West end of E-St who could 
not be at the meeting expressed to Mr. Hooley that he has no concerns with the fence and would like to 
see it left up. A Commissioner had a question to as who the owner of E-Street was? It was explained that 
The City is the owner E-Street. It was asked why the City doesn’t deem themselves the owner of the 
fence? Staff explained that the Revocable Easement puts the onus off the City. Commissioners had 
concern about the legal aspects of the Revocable Easement and asked if it had been looked over by legal 
counsel. It was explained that it had not been, but that this document had been used by other cities and 
had been altered to fit the situation. All Commissioners agreed that they wouldn’t feel comfortable 
recommending this to Council as is and that they would like more legal information and would like to 
know more about Adverse Possession and its role. MOTION: (Brown/Mogni) Tabled until legal advice is 
obtained. Unanimous 
 

Geological and Tsunami Hazards and Safety Presentation-Troy Nicolini:  Will be rescheduled at a later 
date. 
 

Safety Element Update:   It was asked that Study Sessions at 6:30 were reinstated do to speakers that 
will be giving presentations at the September, October, November and February meetings. City Planner 
Melanie Rheaume gave an update on the Safety Element. She went over The Setting and Context section 
which includes identification and overview of geological, storm, flood, fire and other potential hazards in 
the Ferndale Planning area. The next section that was looked at was the Geological and Seismic Hazards 
and the Potential Liquefaction Area of the Ferndale Planning area. Figures for Soil Instability and the 
Tsunami Evacuation area were looked at. City Planner Melanie Rheaume also briefly discussed 
Acceptable risk and Emergency Preparedness. 
 

The next regular meeting will be September 19, 2012. The meeting was adjourned at 8:09PM. 
 

Respectfully submitted, Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, signing for Brianna Smith, Deputy City Clerk  



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 61 

 

City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 

Sign Ordinance Committee Minutes for the 5/17/12 2:30 pm meeting 

 

Acting Chairperson Michael Sweeney opened the meeting at 3:32 pm.  Committee members Trevor 

Harper, Phil Ostler and Karen Pingitore were present.  Committee member Michael Bailey was absent 

(on vacation). 

 

No modifications to agenda 

 

April 18, 2012 Minutes:  MOTION: Approve minutes as presented. (Harper/Sweeney).  All in favor. 

 

No public comment. 

 

BUSINESS  

A. Review, Add and Revise the following: 10004.1 Sign Standards, Maintenance and Design Control  

 

The Committee reviewed edits completed by Chairman Bailey following discussions at the April 18, 2012 

meeting.  Additional discussion focused on draft sub-section 1004.1.1 Design and Construction, 

specifically language related to sign size and what size would trigger the need for sign design by an 

engineer or professional designer.  Draft language stated: “In any case, signs (including mounting 

structure) larger than thirty-two (32) square feet and/or 50 lbs. or more will require plans signed by an 

engineer…”  Trevor Harper reminded the Committee that under current ordinance and practice all signs 

are reviewed by Arnie Kemp, the City’s building inspector, during the permitting process.  The 

Committee decided to strike the above language related to size requiring engineer design from this 

section.  The remaining language would clarify this matter:  “The permitting process and the installation 

will be inspected by the City building inspector prior to final approval by the Planning Commission.   

 

Subsection 1004.1.5 Copy Design and Typeface Guidelines language states:  These principles are 

provided in a separate brochure provided by the Ferndale Design Review Committee.  Michael Sweeney 

disclosed that the Handbook for Building & Business Owners in the Historic District (assuming this is the 

brochure referred to above) does not include any principles related to Copy Design and Typeface.  The 

Committee decided to strike the above language related to “…principles provided in a separate 

brochure…”   

 

Subsection 1004.1.6 Lighting includes the following draft language: “No sign should be lighted before 

sunset or after sunrise.”  The Committee felt that this restriction was not practical and decided to strike 

the language from this section. 

 

Trevor Harper noted that during the most recent Planning Commission meeting Commission members 

did not support the allowance for “sandwich board” signs in the City.  Historically, many sandwich 

boards were provided by the producers of the movie Majestic to support businesses during filming.  



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 62 

 

Long after the movie was finished some businesses continued to use sandwich boards for advertising.  

Commission members expressed concern about these types of signs blocking the sidewalk and creating 

a hazard for pedestrians.  Karen Pingatore expressed her belief that sandwich boards were important 

signs for some businesses (museum, flower shop, surrey bicycles) and added additional aesthetic 

features to the “streetscape.”  Phil Osler believed that sandwich board signs were valuable in conveying 

a commercial message.  None of the current existing “sandwich board” signs have ever been vetted 

through the permitting process.  Karen Pingatore stated that the signs should “look like a sign” (rather 

than a hand written message on a blackboard or poster board) and be approved via the permitting 

process including Design Review.    There should also be a requirement that the signs are removed at the 

end of the business day.  She also added that when going through the permit process, the size of a 

sandwich board sign should not be included as part of the signage allowed for the building occupied by 

the same business. 

 

B. Review Committee Inputs on Section 1004.2 Miscellaneous Business Signs  

 

The Committee continued the discussion from the April meeting addressing 1004.2.Miscellaneous 

Business Signs and draft language proposed by Michael Bailey.  In review of sub-section 1004.2.1 

Directional (On & Off-Site) Signs, draft language stated:  Directional signs may not exceed six (6) square 

feet in area and forty six (46) inches in height.  Trevor Harper stated that current dimensions for 

directional signs contained in the Ferndale Sign Ordinance section 7.23.1 b) (v) adequately regulated 

signes related to business. Accordingly, the Committee reduced the “not to exceed to three (3) square 

feet in area” and struck the remainder of the sentence from the text as shown below: 

 

Directional signs may not exceed six (6) three (3) square feet in area. and forty six (46) inches in 

height. 

 

Under subsection 1004.2.1 3.  The Committee added the following language in parentheses after the 

sub-heading Off-site temporary direction signs (e.g., sandwich board or sidewalk signs).  Additional 

language was added here to limit the size at six (6) square feet and 46 inches in height.  The last 

sentence of this sub-section was edited to place a period at the end of annually and strike through the 

remainder of the sentences as presented below: 

 

An application for these signs must be submitted annually. or if any changes are made to the 

sign copy.  Copy-change signs are not allowed for this application. 

 

As the above signs may include copy related to menus or special messages (e,g, Mother’s Day Special, 

etc.) the Committee felt that sign copy should be allowed to change as the circumstances related to the 

message change throughout the year.  However, the physical design of such signs should be submitted 

and approved through the permitting and Design Review processes on an annual basis. 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 63 

 

Under sub-section 1004.2.2 Multfaced, Double Faced & V-Type signs, the draft language was edited as 

follows: 

 

One (1) multifaced sign shall be permitted.  Such signs shall not be located at a safe setback 

from vehicular traffic closer than three (3) to the vertical plane of the right-of- way. 

 

For sub-section 1004.2.3 Exterior and Interior signs, the Committee felt that existing sign ordinance 

language was preferable and substituted the draft language in this section with the following from 

Section 7.23.3.a. (i - iv): 

 

a. In any C-1, C-2 or M-L zone, appurtenant to any permitted use, the maximum aggregate area 

of all signs shall not exceed the following:  

i. On a building with forty (40) feet or less frontage on a public way, sign(s) shall not exceed 0.25 

square feet for each foot of frontage. In the case of a building with frontage on more than one 

public way, each frontage is considered separately.  

ii. On a building with frontage greater than forty (40) feet, sign(s) shall not exceed 0.25 square 

feet for each foot of frontage, to a maximum of twenty (20) square feet. In the case of a building 

with frontage on more than one public way, each frontage is considered separately.  

iii. A business with a location within the interior of a structure served by an interior mall or other 

means of ingress and egress shall be limited to one (1) sign at each building entry identifying the 

building name and a directory that may contain the names of all businesses within the building. 

Individual businesses within the building shall be limited to one (1) overhanging sign not to 

exceed three (3) square feet or one (1) flat sign not to exceed six (6) square feet.  

iv. Signs found to be of historic significance by the City Council on the recommendation of the 

Planning Commission may be exempt from the above requirements.  

 

In discussing sub-section 1004.2.4 Freestanding Sign, the Committee considered that signs of this nature 

(as described under this sub-section) appear not to be appropriate for the Historic District or elsewhere 

in the City largely due to the allowed size which suggest a sign similar in scale to a billboard.  

Subsequently, this language was stricken from the section. 

 

Discussion of sub-section 1004.2.5 Ground Sign did not lead to any editorial changes.  Such signs are few 

in Ferndale including Nilsen’s, the Mortuary, Redwood Suites, the churches, and the NotoCo sign.   

 

Discussion of 1004.2.6 Monument Signs concluded that such signs are out of character with the City of 

Ferndale.. Phil Osler stated that monument signs represent a significant piece of construction.  Karen 

Pingatore suggested that a monument sign would be appropriate if Nilsen’s broke itself into a mall with 

several separate stores requiring multiple signs typically included in a monument type sign.  

Subsequently, this language was stricken from the section. 

 

Committee discussion concluded with three subsections remaining for review: 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 64 

 

 

1004.2.7 Wall or Fascia 

1004.2.8 Wall Murals and Graphic Designs, and 

1004.2.9 Window and Door 

 

The next regular meeting will be June 21, 2012 at 2:30 pm.  The meeting was adjourned at 5:00 pm. 

 

Respectfully submitted by: 

 

 Michael Sweeney 

 
 

  



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 65 

 

Section 13c: Council Reports and Comments   



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 66 

 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 67 

 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 68 

 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 69 

 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 70 

 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 71 

 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 72 

 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 73 

 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 74 

 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 75 

 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 76 

 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 77 

 

  



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 78 

 

 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 79 

 

 



October 4, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 80 

 

 

                                                                            

 
 
 
 

Section 14: Adjourn 
 


